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1. Name

historic East Main Street Historic District

and/or common Same

2. Location
street & number Irregular pattern along E. Main St,-See attached map _not tor publication

city, town Jackson vicinity of congressional district Sixth

state Tennessee code 047 county Madison code 113

3. Classification
Category
_X _ district 

building(s)
structure
site
object

Ownership
public

X private
both

Public Acquisition
in process
being considered

Status
X occupied 

unoccupied
work in progress

Accessible
X yes: restricted 

yes: unrestricted
no

Present Use
agriculture

X commercial
educational
entertainment
government
industrial
military

museum
park

J£ _ private residence 
religious
scientific
transportation
other:

4. Owner of Property

name Multiple ownership-See attached list

street & number

city, town vicinity of state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Madison County Courthouse

street & number Court Square

city, town Jackson state Tennessee 38301

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title has this property been determined elegible? __ yes no

date federal state __ county local

depository for survey records

city, town state



7. Description

Condition
X excellent 

-X-good 
_X_fair

deteriorated
ruins

unexposed

Check one
X unaltered
X altered

Check one
X original site

moved date

Describe the present and original (iff known) physical appearance

Architectural Description

Located in Jackson, the county seat of Madison County in West Tennessee, the East Main 
Street Historic District is a residential area immediately east of the central business 
district. It is bounded to the north by the former site of Union University (buildings 
are presently being demolished), and to the south and east by residential areas which 
underwent development from approximately 1920 to 1940.

Included in the district are twenty-two houses, built between 1870 and 1915, which repre­ 
sent vernacular interpretations of late Victorian and early twentieth century architectural 
modes. Before 1900, the Queen Anne influence is predominant. However, Eastlake and 
Italianate ornamentation are often integrated into these residences. There is also one 
example of a simplified version of the Gothic Revival. Residences constructed after 1900 
range from a modest bungalow to the more ambitious Colonial Revival.

j
Situated on small lots and set back evenly from the tree-lined street, the houses are 
for the most part we11-maintained with few major alterations. Except for-two buildings 
which are used for commercial purposes, the area remains residential in character, with 
all twenty-two buildings contributing to its significance.

Buildings contributing to the character of the district

1. Wisdom House (535 East Main Street): 1880-1881—2% stories, brick, multi-gabled roof, 
encircling veranda with bracketed posts, tall corbelled brick chimneys, half timbering in 
gable end, recessed porches in front and side dormers, bay window, small second-story porch.

2. Tomlin House (539 East Main Street): ca. 1880—2 stories, weatherboard, hip roof with 
cross gables, encircling Eastlake veranda, small second-story wrap-around Eastlake porch, 
curvilinear wood trim in gable peak,

3. Peques House (543 East Main Street): ca. 1880—2 stories, weatherboard, hip roof with 
cross gables, attic grille vent, encircling veranda with plain columns and gabled entrance, 
transom, altered.

4. McKinnie House (549 East Main Street): ca. 1878—two stories; brick; hip roof with cross 
gables; encircling veranda with paired Doric-like attenuated columns on brick piers, 
bracketed frieze, and pedimented entrance with patterned shingles; small second-stfipy re­ 
cessed porch, segmental and round arched windows, second-story hood molds with corbel stops, 
bracketed eaves.

5. Robertson House (553 East Main Street): ca, 1900—2% stories, brick and shingle, 
cross gable roof, front pedimented gable, extended brick porch with Tudor-arched entrance, 
circular bay window.

6. Curtis House (561 East Main Street): ca. 1915—2% stories, brick, gambrel roof, semi­ 
circular portico Conly one Ionic capital remains), full entablature with dentilled cornice 
modillions on portico cornice, central second-story balcony, three dormers,

7. Arrington House (569 East Main Street): ca. 1880—two stories, brick, gable roof, 
two tier veranda with brick railing on first story and wood columns and balustrade on
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second story, round-arched windows, trabeated first and second story doorways, altered.

8. Kenzie House ( 571 East Main Street): ca. 1900—2 stories, weatherboard, hip roof, 
extended porch with large corner brick posts.

9. Irby House (577 East Main Street): ca. 1870—2 stories, brick, gable roof, two-tier 
central porch with wrought iron railing, octagonal end bays with modillioned cornices 
and octagonal roofs, segmentally arched openings, altered.

10. Polk House (583 East Main Street): 1895—2% stories, brick, hip roof with cross gables, 
encircling Eastlake veranda, domed tower, octagonal attic balcony, bay windows, half 
timbering in gable.

11. Snider House (619 East Main): ca. 1910—1% stories, weatherboard, hip roof with 
cross gables, fish scale shingles in gable, encircling veranda, pedimented dormer.

12. Payne House (621 East Main): ca. 1915—1% stories, weatherboard, gable roof, recessed 
porch, gable dormer.

13. Tucker House (624 East Main): ca. 1910—1% stories, weatherboard, gable roof, recessed 
porch on west end of main facade, bay window, gable dormer.

14. Burk House (620 East Main): ca. 1910--!% stories, brick, gable roof, recessed front 
porch with brick posts, side porch, gable dormer.

15. Stegall House (618 East Main): ca. 1900—2% stories, weatherboard, gable roof, large 
hip roofed, shingled projection in second story, extended porch with plain columns.

16. Anderson House (606 East Main): ca. 1890—weatherboard, cross gable roof, offset 
gabled entrance porch, mold»!j and perforated rake boards, king posts, round-arched windows.

17. Smith House (600 East Main): ca. 1911—2 stories, brick, multi-hip roof, encircling 
porch, bracketed eaves, curved dormer.

18. Hurt House (586 East Main Street): ca. 1895—2 stories, frame covered with shingles, 
gable roof, rectangular portico with plain entablature, sidelights, balcony, brick 
exterior and chimneys, altered.

19. Stegall House (564 East Main Street): ca. 1915— 2 stories, brick, gable roof with 
full returns, hip roofed second-story projection, main and side entrance porches linked 
by terrace, bay window, sidelights and transom.

20. Watters House (554 East Main Street): ca. 1915—2% stories, frame covered with 
shingles, hip roof, bracketed eaves, extended porch with west side enclosed, sidelights 
and transom, hip dormer,

21. Williams-French House (548 East Main Street): ca, 1915—1% stories, frame covered 
with shingles, gable roof, recessed porch, shed dormer.
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22. Murdock House (546 East Main Street): ca. 1880—2% stones, brick, hip roof with 
gabled projections, encircling Eastlake veranda, small second-story corner porch, 
fish scale shingles in gable, bay window.



8. Significance

Period
__ prehistoric 
__1400-1499 
__1500-1599 
__1600-1699 
__1700-1799 
_X_1800-1899 
-X-1900-

Areas off Significance—Check and justify below
archeology-prehistoric

__ archeology-historic
agriculture 

X architecture 
__art
__ commerce 
__ communications

community planning
conservation
economics
education
engineering
exploration/settlement
industry
invention

landscape architecture__ religion
law
literature
military
music
philosophy
politics/government

science
sculpture
social/
humanitarian
theater
transportation
other (specify)

Specific dates -| 370,] 9 ] 5 Builder/Architect

Statement off Significance (in one paragraph)

The East Main Street Historic District, which includes twenty-two residences built between 
1870 and 1915, represents the major trends in residential architecture from the late 
Victorian period to the early twentieth century. This is the only collection of such 
buildings in Jackson.

The majority of houses in the district constructed between 1870 and 1900 illustrate the 
influence of the Queen Anne style. This is evidenced by their asymmetrical massing, the 
combination of hip and gable roof forms, and the frequent use of verandas with Eastlake 
ornamentation. The most exuberant example of the Queen Anne mode is the Polk House (#10) 
with its eclectic combination of domed tower, half-timbering, bay windows, Eastlake 
veranda and octagonal balcony. The Wisdom House (#1) expresses the Queen Anne feeling in 
quite a different manner. The emphasis here is on active massing rather than a complexity 
of details. The further variety of Queen Anne forms can be seen in the Murdock House(#22j, 
the Tomlin House (#2) and, in its massing, the Peques House (#3). The Snider House (#11) 
is an example of a Queen Anne cottage. Two houses in the district display Italianate 
features. The McKinnie House (#4) is decorated with bracketed eaves and hood molds with 
corbel stops; its windows are either segmental or round arched. The Italianate influence 
is also apparent in the Irby House (#9) with its octagonal end bays and segmental arched 
openings. In contrast to the late Victorian styles, two buildings exhibit elements of 
an earlier period. The Anderson House (#16) is Gothic Revival in appearance while the 
Hurt House (#18), although somewhat altered, seems influenced by the Greek Revival period.

Examples of early twentieth-century architecture range from the informal bungalow, as 
illustrated by the Burk House (#14), to the formal Colonial Revival, an excellent example 
of which is the Curtis House (#6). More modest adaptations of the latter style can be 
seen in the Smith (#17) and Stegall (#19) houses.

Many prominent political and business leaders of Jackson lived in the district. The 
following residents served as mayor—Dr. J. A. Arrington (#7) in 1894, H. C. Anderson 
(#16) from 1894 to 1908, and Thomas Polk (#10) from 1909 to 1910. Anderson and Polk 
were also active in banking; Anderson helped incorporate Jackson's largest and most 
influential bank, the People's Savings Bank, in 1889 while Polk served as president of 
the Second National Bank from 1907 to 1928, John R. McKinnie (#4) and John L. Wisdom 
(#1) were both president of the First National Bank—the former in 1909 and the latter 
from 1884 to 1890 and again from 1903 to 1919. Wisdom was also vice-president of the 
Second National Bank from 1908 to 1919.

The district is also linked to the development of higher education in Jackson. In 1873, 
Baptists in Tennessee, North Alabama and Mississippi decided to merge Union University 
of Murfreesboro with West Tennessee College in Jackson, with Jackson as the site. The



9. Major Bibliographical References___________
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10. Geographical Data ^
Acreage of nominated property
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Verbal boundary description and justification

The district boundaries were drawn to Include only those significant examples of late
nineteenth and early twentieth century architecture. The surrounding areas are
either vacant or contain later residential development as outlined in red on the enclosed map
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state ____________________ code ______ county ___________________ code _________

state . code county code

1 1 . Form Prepared By
Cathy Holland, Program Planner 

name/title Kay Benton, Architectural Historian
Southwest Tenn. Development District 

organization Tennessee Historical Commission _______ date April 15, 1980
1804 Highway 45 Bypass 

street & number 4721 Trousdale Drive , , , telephone (615) 741.-2371

Jackson Tennessee 38301 
city or town Nashville ___________________ state Tennessee 37219

12, State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this property within the state is: 

natiftnai State X

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89- 
665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated 
according to the criteria and procedures set forth byJhe Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature \AA^/l^ft L.

title Executive Director, Tennessee Historical Commission date
For HCRS use only ^ -,

I herebyce7tt{y that this prop^ny is included in the National Register

c, date

Keeper of the Nationaf Register

Attest: "y^/fdio^ TZ 6 ' L&UM OJLJL date

qPO 938 833
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new institution, Southwestern Baptist University opened in 1875. The name was changed to 
Union University in 1907. Within recent years, the university built a new campus on 
Highway 45 Bypass. Several of the school's buildings, since demolished, occupied a now 
vacant lot in the northeastern section of the district. The remaining buildings of the 
original campus, immediately adjacent to the district's northern boundary, are presently 
being demolished. Several residents of the district were associated with the university. 
Dr. Henry E. Watters (#20) served as president from 1920-1932. John Getter Hurt also 
served as president in 1932. Dr. Henry Clay Irby (#9) came to Union University in 1883, 
where he served as professor of Bible and Mathematics until 1923.

The district boundaries were drawn to include only those significant examples of late 
nineteenth and early twentieth century architecture. The surrounding areas are either 
vacant or contain later residential development.
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Weaver, Margurite McKinnie. Paris, Tennessee. Interview, 25 March 1980. 

Webb, Jerry. Jackson, Tennessee. Interview, 21 March 1980.

Williams, Emma Inmans. Historic Madison, Jackson, Tennessee: Madison County 
Historical Society, 1946.


